
   
 

1 Rockport Planning Board Minutes 7/23/2020 
 

Town of Rockport Planning Board   
Thursday, August 27, 2020 – 5:30 p.m. 

 
 Streamed at https://livestream.com/Rockportmaine 

At this meeting, the Board used a videoconference format. 

Public comments or questions were provided remotely through the livestream 

chat feature or in advance via email. 

 
 

Board Present:  Chair Joe Sternowski, Vice Chair John Viehman, Victoria Condon, 
Tom Laurent, Mark Haley (alternate)   

 

 Board Absent:   Ted Skowronski 

 

 Staff Present:  Planner and Community Development Director William Najpauer  

 
Meeting called to order at 5:32 p.m. 
 
The chair began the meeting by seating Mr. Haley as a full voting member.  
 

Item 1: Consideration of a preliminary subdivision application submitted by 
Rockport MHP LLC and represented by Landmark Corporation Surveyors and 
Engineers to add 12 additional sites to an existing mobile home park located at 
1110 Commercial Street Map 1 Lot 30.(The Planning Board will also schedule a 
date for a site visit) 

 

Mr. Joel Lufkin replaced Mr. Mike Sabatini as the representative for Landmark. He 
provided an overview of the plan to add 12 new doublewide units at the former 
Patterson Mobile Home Park (now Rockport MHP).  
 
The material submitted as part of the preliminary application included: 

• New application form 
• Preliminary road and infrastructure plan 
• Preliminary recording flat 
• Sewer ability to serve letters from 2006 – update required 

https://livestream.com/Rockportmaine


   
 

2 Rockport Planning Board Minutes 7/23/2020 
 

• Water ability to serve letter is under review by Maine Water 
• Significant habitat map 
• Zoning Board notice of decision which approved expansion plans. 

 
The 26 acre lot has 25 singlewides and small houses; the existing units were built in the 
1960s and are grandfathered in. The lot is served by public sewer and water, and 
updates were previously reviewed by the planning board in 2006 and 2009; they were 
approved but never put into motion. 
 
The present application is the same, except for an adjustment of an access road that 
reduces impervious area and wetland impacts. The lower end of Lily Bea lane has been 
eliminated and a T-shaped turnaround for emergency vehicles has been added. 
 
The new units, as well as the house, will be connected to private sewer which feeds into 
a public sewer pumping station.  A private water line will be tapped for new units; this 
line comes from Commercial Street (Maine Water). 
 
A 50-foot buffer exists around all but the grandfathered area, and the wooded areas are 
not being disturbed.  The DEP has confirmed that the permits for the NRPA from 2006 
are still valid and transferred to the new owner.  The storm water permit has  expired 
and will be resubmitted to the DEP in the next couple of weeks. 
 
Hydrologic assessment:  No shallow bedrock soils, onsite wells, or underground 
wastewater disposal – Mr. Lufkin said they would like it if such an assessment would not 
be required. 
 
Traffic estimates work out to 23 peak hour trips, less than the 40 that require a study. 
 
Mr. Lufkin also requested that the stormwater plan be waived, but not the erosion plan. 
Mr. Viehman was monitoring Livestream for public comment, and no comments had 
been received.  Mr. Sternowski asked if Mr. Najpauer or Mandy Everett had received 
any emails or letters on the topic, and Mr. Najpauer replied no.  
 
Mr. Najpauer noted that since this is a public hearing and preliminary review, the goal is 
to make sure the application is complete.  If the board wishes to do a site visit one can 
be arranged.  
 
Mr. Viehman again said no comments. 
 
Mr. Sternowski suggested the board consider the completeness of the application, 
rather than go through it piece by piece. 
 
Mr. Laurent asked if the drawings on the plan were to scale.  Mr. Lufkin replied yes, they 
were.  The proposed units are doublewides, 28 by 36 feet. 
 



   
 

3 Rockport Planning Board Minutes 7/23/2020 
 

Mr. Viehman noted that a comment had come in on Livestream, asking for a discussion 
of how the hookup to the town wastewater system would affect the ongoing infiltration 
problem.  Mr. Viehman said he wasn’t aware of a problem.  Mr. Laurent said that in one 
letter Landmark had submitted, removing or capping off the old sewer line and replacing 
it with new had been mentioned.  Mr, Lufkin replied that, yes, that is the plan;  this is the 
portion from the existing sewer, and it will be cut off and taken out of service, and water 
from that unit will go into the new system.  The old sewer line will be capped off. The 
wastewater will be pumped back into the town system. 
 
Mr. Sternowski asked about updating the prior agency approvals, and Mr. Sternowski 
further stated that Mr. Lufkin said that the sewer and water supply letters would be 
updated. Mr. Kukin stated which letters would be updated.  Mr. Sternowski asked Mr. 
Najpauer if all the DEP letters had to be updated, and he was told no, only the 
stormwater letter would. 
 
Mr. Viehman: Another comment: “The town is being billed for wastewater (treatment) 
that was never billed (to a customer) as a source of water into the system, creating a 
problem where users are paying for this discrepancy.”  (This refers to infiltration.) 
 
 Both Mr. Lufkin and  Mr. Najpauer said they were not aware of any issue. Mr. Lufkin will 
ask if there are problems at the mobile home park with infiltrations.  He noted that the 
pumping station may need an upgrade, but he is not sure of status. 
 
Ms. Condon asked about letters from the fire and police departments regarding the 
project’s impact, and Mr. Najpauer replied that those letters would be part of the final 
application. 
 
Mr. Sternowski discussed the flat drawing. There was an inconsistency in the width of 
the path of the common area, which said four feet in one place and six in another.  
There had previously been discussion of whether the greenspace should be cleared;  
Mr. Sternowski brought that up for the board to consider and look at (just a note on 
actions of a previous planning board.)  Also it was not possible to tell where electrical 
services were to be located in the new section;  Mr. Lufkin responded that proposed 
utilities are not shown on the drawing, but they would be overhead.  Mr. Sternowski 
noted that the removal of the road assumes that there will be landscaping after 
pavement is removed;  will dirt be brought in for the construction of new road? Mr. 
Najpauer said they would need to bring in soil for base and subbase. 
 
Mr. Sternowski said an old letter from Woodward and Curran referred to things that 
should be done, but these are not indicated in the drawings, such as insulation between 
culvert and sewer line. He requested that Landmark go back and look at those notes. 
 
Mr. Sternowski asked if anything has changed that should cause us not to waive the 
stormwater management plan?  Mr. Najpauer said conditions have not changed. 
Requirements for MHP have not changed. The same goes for the hydrologic study; 
because water is not being removed, it will not be impacted. ??? 



   
 

4 Rockport Planning Board Minutes 7/23/2020 
 

 
Mr. Sternowski noted that a waiver for the traffic study has also been requested.;  Mr. 
Najpauer noted that the number of trips from the mobile home park does not reach the 
number required, so it is not so much a waiver as it is not applicable.  
 
Mr. Haley had no questions. 
 
Mr. Laurent wondered if the reduction in traffic trips were related to seasonal residents. 
Mr. Najpauer said the lower numbers had nothing to do with the seasonality.  Mr. 
Laurent asked if any of these units were seasonal, and Mr. Najpauer and Mr. Lufkin 
both said no. 
 
Ms. Condon had no comments. 
 
 
FINDING: Mr. Sternowski asked for a finding of fact, that with items identified here this 
evening, the planning board considers this preliminary plan to be complete. 
 
Mr. Viehman so moved,  Mr. Haley seconded. 
 
Mr. Laurent asked if there had to be any contingencies regarding Maine Water and 
Woodward and Curran.   Mr. Najpauer said no, they will have to be included in final 
plan.  
 
As a matter of procedure, we are talking about amending the motion, said Mr. Viehman.  
Mr. Najpauer suggested that the amendment would be that we accept that the 
preliminary plan is sufficient to proceed to develop the final. 
 
Mr. Viehman withdrew original motion. 
 
 
FINDING:  Mr. Viehman moved that the RMP preliminary plan application is satisfactory 
and meets the requirements of the LUO and subdivision codes.  
 
Mr. Haley seconded.  
No discussion. 
 
CARRIED: 5-0-0 
 
Discussion followed regarding a site visit; the date of September 23 was suggested and 
approved.  
 

Item 2: Consideration of a site review application submitted by the Midcoast 
Music Academy, (Jen Feldman, Executive Director) to operate a Music School 



   
 

5 Rockport Planning Board Minutes 7/23/2020 
 

located at 817 Commercial Street Map 6 Lot 143 ( 907 District) The school will be 
located in an existing building within the Oakland Commons Office Complex. 

 
Ms. Feldman explained that the music academy has been in existence since 2012 and 
currently operates out of a building on Main Street in Rockland.  The school provides 
private and group instruction.  There are six instructors, herself, and an office manager. 
The building had been a doctor’s office, and the small examination rooms lend 
themselves very well to the school’s work.  No outdoor alteration is needed or wanted.  
 
Mr. Sternowski opened the discussion for public comment.Mr. Najpauer noted that no 
written or emailed comments had been received. 
 
Mr. Viehman asked if the building was freestanding, with no common walls. Ms. 
Feldman said that was the case.She explained that she and the office manager are not 
there at the same time, and there are 50 parking spaces available.  However, the school 
has no more than 6 students at a time.  They would install soundproofing and add 
windows to the interior doors of the former exam rooms.  
 
No public comments were received on Livestream; public comments closed. 
 
FINDING:  Mr. Viehman moved that the application for a change of use by the Midcoast 
Music Academy be considered complete.  Ms. Condon seconded.  
 
CARRIED: 5-0-0 
  
Mr. Sternowski noted that this would be a change of use under section 900, and it is 
considered a conditional use.  
 
FINDING:  Mr. Viehman moved for a finding of fact: that the Midcoast Music Academy is 
allowed the use of this building as a school. Mr. Haley seconded.  
 
CARRIED: 5-0-0 
 
Mr. Sternowski said that because this is not new construction, section 1305 does not 
apply. 
 
FINDING:  Mr. Viehman moved for a finding of fact: that this modified use is not 
required to meet section 1305. Mr. Haley seconded.  
 
CARRIED: 5-0-0 
 
Mr. Sternowski turned the discussion to section 800, general standards of performance. 
He asked how many staff and students would be at the location at peak times. Ms. 
Feldman estimates no more than 12:  9 students and 3 instructors.  
 



   
 

6 Rockport Planning Board Minutes 7/23/2020 
 

Based on section 803, 3 spaces are required per adult, and one for students. The 
previous spaces would be 11 (1 per 200 square feet).  It would be reasonable to 
assume that this building, as an office/professional building, had enough spaces.  
 
Ms. Feldman said students are a mix of adults and children. Mr. Haley asked if the 
students were all adults, then that would put the use of the parking spaces at 12.  
 
Ms. Feldman said that peak hours for the school are between 3 and 7  p.m., opposite 
hours of other offices in the complex. 
 
Mr. Sternowski noted that the ordinance does not distinguish between adult students 
and children. There should be parking for 5 students. 
 
Mr. Haley said that alleviated his concern. 
 
Mr. Sternowski brought up the possibility of noise. The ordinance does not allow the 
playing of amplified music after 10 p.m. that can be heard beyond the property line.  
 
Ms. Feldman says the school currently operates in an office building, and so it’s 
important to them to be good neighbors.  There will be soundproofing, and there are no 
shared walls. 
 
Mr. Sternowski asked if the large nearby building was a residence. Ms. Feldman said 
no, it is commercial, and Mr. Najpauer noted that it is a commercial district.  Mr. 
Viehman asked where the property line is located, and Mr. Najpauer said it is Route 1. 
Mr. Viehman said that any abutters to the building are part of the condo association, so 
this is not really a question of affecting other property owners. 
 
Mr. Sternowski asked if there were any other concerns. No comments.  
 
FINDING:  Mr. Haley moved for a finding of fact: that the Midcoast Music Academy 
satisfies the requirements of section 800.  Mr. Viehman seconded.  
 
No discussion. 
 
CARRIED: 5-0-0 
 
Mr. Sternowski turned to section 1000.  Because the proposed use is a change of use 
to an existing plot, Mr. Sternowski suggested that this section does not apply. 
 
FINDING:  Mr. Viehman moved for a finding of fact: Section 1000 does not apply 
because the proposed use is a change of use. Haley seconded. 
 
No discussion. 
 
CARRIED: 5-0-0 



   
 

7 Rockport Planning Board Minutes 7/23/2020 
 

 
Mr. Sternowski asked for a motion to approve.  Mr. Doug Erickson, real estate agent for 
Dr. Robert Merrill, former occupant of the building, corrected the address misstated by 
the chair from 817 to 821 Commercial St. 
 
MOTION: Mr. Laurent moved to approve that The Midcoast Music Academy’s 
application to open as a music school at 821 Commercial St., Map 6, Lot 143, in a 907 
district, is approved and allowed to go forward.  
This motion was not formally seconded due to the interruption by Mr. Erickson.  
 
No discussion. 
 
CARRIED: 5-0-0 
 
Project approved. 
 
 

Item 3: Consideration of a site review application submitted by Vanessa Knause 
(Studio Red) to operate a dance school at 509 Rockland Street, Map 17 Lot 91, 
(904District) The proposed dance school will be located in an existing building. 

 
Ms. Knause explained that she is the owner of Studio Red, a dance studio she started 
12 years ago.  They have been in several locations, most recently at the Riley School, 
but the pandemic made them realize it was time for a permanent location.  She employs 
2 instructors who teach 15 students at a time in 2 classes;  students range in age from 
2-18 years.  
 
Mr. Sternowski asked what the normal hours of operation are. 
Ms. Knause replied M-F from 3:30 to 8:30, and Saturday from 9-4. 
 
Mr. Najpauer said that the existing building is currently used as a taxi facility.  He looked 
at the parking and noted that there are 22 spaces on both sides and the rear, and a 
drop off space in front.  
 
Mr. Sternowski asked if any public comment had been received, and Mr. Viehman 
responded no.  
 
Mr. Viehman noted that he recalled a site walk when the taxi company had applied, and 
noted that the building is well constructed.  He asked if the school was buying or leasing 
the property.  Ms. Knause replied they are buying the property.  
 
The property is being divided by the current owner and has been offered for sale in both 
its original state and as divided.  Mr. Viehman said he was looking for a plot plan, and 
Mr. Najpauer noted that it was yet to be provided.  



   
 

8 Rockport Planning Board Minutes 7/23/2020 
 

 
Mr. Viehman asked if the board can assume that all the setback requirements have 
been met. Mr. Najpauer said they have, and he has had numerous discussions with the 
owners about how to divide the property.  
 
Mr. Sternowski checked again regarding public comment;  Mr. Viehman said none was 
received, and so the chair closed the period for public comment. 
 
FINDING:  Mr. Viehman moved for a finding of fact that the application for the project 
was complete.  
Ms. Condon seconded.  
 
Discussion 
Mr. Haley said he was concerned about moving ahead without drawings.  Ms. Condon 
pointed out a second packet of information had been given to the board that day.  Mr. 
Najpauer said the total lot has ample area to be split into two lots, both as far as 
frontage and gross area are concerned. 
 
Mr. Viehman asked if a description of the split could be provided.  Ms. Knause replied 
that she will have two acres out of the five that comprise the current lot.  
 
Mr. Sternowski asked if the side setbacks will be met, and Ms. Knause replied that there 
is a large separation between the building under discussion and the house on the lot, 
and Mr. Najpauer concurred.  
 
Mr. Haley said he estimates that the building will have 200 feet of frontage if split 2 
acres and 3 acres.  
 
Mr. Najpauer said there is ample setback.  Mr. Sternowski noted that the side setback 
also needs to meet the requirements, and Mr. Najpauer said that that must be done 
anyway. 
 
Mr. Haley said he was comfortable with that. 
 
Mr. Sternowski said there was a motion to accept the application as submitted as 
complete.  The application is not complete, but he thinks that can be handled by 
amending the motion.  Mr. Najpauer suggested adding that the approval was subject to 
meeting all dimensional requirements.  
 
Mr. Viehman asked if there was anything before the board specifying how big the lot 
would be, and that information was found on page 3 of the Purchase and Sales 
agreement.  
 
Mr. Laurent asked if the project complied with the table found in the LUO at 9-28.  Mr. 
Sternowski said yes but we just had to make sure of the setback requirements.  Ms. 
Condon said that the property needs to be a conforming lot and meet all setbacks. 



   
 

9 Rockport Planning Board Minutes 7/23/2020 
 

 
FINDING:  Mr. Haley moved the application be considered complete assuming that the 
lot division meets the setback requirements in the dimensional table in section 900. Mr. 
Viehman seconded.  (Mr. Viehman’s original finding motion was not withdrawn.) 
 
CARRIED 5-0-0 
 
Mr. Sternowski: regarding section 900.  
 
FINDING:  Mr. Laurent moved that the application meets the requirements for section 
900 and is a conditional use for a 904 district.  Ms. Condon seconded. 
No discussion 
 
CARRIED 5-0-0 
 
Mr. Sternowski said that because this is a change of use, section 1305 does not apply. 
 
FINDING:  Mr. Haley moved for a finding of fact: that this modified use is not required to 
meet section 1305.   Mr. Viehman seconded.  
 
No discussion. 
 
CARRIED: 5-0-0 
 
 
Mr. Sternowski proposed that the board consider only 803, regarding traffic.  
 
Mr. Haley asked if the classes are staggered, because if all students arrived at the 
same time that would be a lot of cars.  Ms. Knause said that students arrive and stay for 
multiple classes, and some parents carpool. 
 
Mr. Sternowski suggested looking back at the requirements under the ordinance.  Three 
possible numbers were proposed:  one based on school requirements (5 
students/parking space plus two for teachers added to 9); o ne based on typical dance 
school figures (1 space/ 400 gross square feet);  and a third based on commercial lot 
requirements (10 spaces for students plus 3 for teachers).  All calculations resulted in 
figures lower than the 22 parking spots Mr. Najpauer counted as available at the 
property. 
 
FINDING: Mr. Viehman moved that this application meets the general standards of 
performance of section 800.  Mr. Haley seconded. 
 
No discussion. 
 
CARRIED 5-0-0 
 



   
 

10 Rockport Planning Board Minutes 7/23/2020 
 

 
Mr. Sternowski said section 1000 was the final one to be considered, and he suggested 
that section 1000 does not apply because this is a change of use. 
 
FINDING:  Mr. Viehman moved as a finding of fact that the standards in section 1000 do 
not apply. Ms. Condon seconded.  
No discussion. 
 
CARRIED 5-0-0 
 
MOTION:  Mr. Viehman moved to approve this application for Project Red to operate a 
dance school at 509 Rockland Street, Map 17, Lot 91, in a 904 district.  Mr. Laurent 
seconded. 
 
No discussion. 
 
CARRIED 5-0-0 
 
Application approved. 
 
 

Item 4: Consideration of the Ground Mounted Solar Energy System (Solar Farm) 
Ordinance 

 

Mr. Sternowski noted that the ordinance review committee wanted to place a proposed 
change to ordinance regarding solar farms on the November ballot.  He said his 
concern was that there is not a lot of specificity in what was proposed, and he asked the 
ORC if this was an interim ordinance and that a more specific and detailed ordinance 
about solar farms would be worked on over the winter and into spring.  
 
Mr. Richard Remsen explained that the ORC felt they couldn’t be too specific without 
consulting with people who have experience with solar farms. 
 
Mr. Laurent asked what additional information was needed. 
 
Mr. Sternowski gave as examples the following:  rules of land use, whether clearcutting 
would be allowed, and sun glare issues (especially if the solar farm is near a road).  He 
noted that in previous applications the board requested that the applicants not use a 
chain link fence, but instead a fence that was more in keeping with the rural district. 
 
Mr. Viehman noted that no public comments had been received. 
 



   
 

11 Rockport Planning Board Minutes 7/23/2020 
 

Mr. Sternowski asked if that answered Mr. Laurent‘s question. He said he was 
particularly interested in aesthetics and impingement on views;  the last farm was 
clearly visible from Beech Nut Hill.  Mr. Sternowski noted that there are formally 
accepted scenic vistas in state laws and rules, and Mr. Remsen said that Gateway 1 
defined major “viewsheds,” and that information would be useful to refer to, rather than 
have arbitrary decisions made.  
 
Mr. Sternowski said the ordinance would allow the planning board to review every 
applicant at the same level. 
 
Mr. Haley asked when the effective date would be.  Mr. Najpauer confirmed that it would 
January 1, 2021. 
 
Hearing no public comments, the chair closed the public comment period and asked the 
board to move forward on a vote to recommend or not recommend the interim 
ordinance for the November town ballot. 
 
4 members voted to recommend; none voted to not recommend; one abstained. 
 

Item 5: Consideration of Meeting Minutes:  June 25 and July 23 

 

Mr. Sternowski reminded the members that they had looked at the June 25 minutes and 
found one particular section confusing;  Mindy Everett reviewed and made corrections 
to that section.  
 
MOTION: Mr. Viehman moved to approve the June 25 meeting minutes as corrected. 
Ms. Condon seconded. 
 
Mr. Laurent noted there was a repetition of the word needed in one paragraph.  Mr. 
Sternowski said that could remain. 
 
CARRIED 5-0-0 
June 25 minutes approved. 
 
July 23 minutes: Mr. Sternowski asked if there were any concerns with the minutes as 
corrected on the cloud drive. No concerns. 
 
MOTION:  Mr. Viehman moved to accept the July 23 minutes as modified by board 
members. Mr. Haley seconded. 
 
CARRIED 5-0-0 
 
July 23 minutes approved. 



   
 

12 Rockport Planning Board Minutes 7/23/2020 
 

 
Mr. Sternowski noted that as a new procedure going forward, corrections will be made 
on the cloud to the minutes by members of the board , which will keep the board from 
spending a lot of time at the public meeting going through changes.  All board members 
agreed. 
 
 
Item 6: Other Business 
 
Mr. Haley said he would be interested in sitting on the ORB as a Planning Board 
representative.  Mr. Sternowski thanked him, noting that the board has two seats on the 
ORB, which meets mostly from January to March.  Mr. Sternowski stated that the group 
is very punctual related to meeting times.  
 
Mr. Sternowski asked Mr. Najpauer if subdivision training would still be valuable to the 
board members, and Mr. Najpauer said yes.  Mr. Najpauer agreed to send out materials 
to the board for their review before training, which would take about an hour. 
 
Item 7: Adjournment   
 
MOTION:  Mr Viehman moved to adjourn the meeting.  Seconded by Mr. Haley.  
 
CARRIED 5-0-0  The meeting was adjourned at 7:47 PM.    
 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
Fran Hodgkins  


